
K 

 

 
 

                        MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
 

 
DATE & TIME:  July, 24, 2020 • 8:00 AM – 10:00 AM  
 
REMOTE ACCESS:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09 
 

MEETING ID#: 732 105 8840  PASSWORD (if requested): WCCTAC2020  
 
Shelter-In-Place Order and Teleconference 
The Contra Costa County Health Officer issued an order directing residents to shelter in 
place, due to COVID-19.  The order limits activity, travel, and business functions to only 
those that are essential. 
 
Remote Participation Only 
As a result of the COVID-19 public health emergency, including the County Health 
Officer and Governor’s directives for everyone to shelter in place, there will be no 
physical location for the Board Meeting.  Board members will attend via teleconference 
and members of the public are invited to attend the meeting and participate remotely.  
 
Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20, Board members: Chris Kelley, Roy 
Swearingen, Rita Xavier, Tom Butt, Ben Choi, Demnlus Johnson, Paul Fadelli, John Gioia, 
Chris Peeples, Maureen Powers, and Mark Foley may be attending this meeting via 
teleconference, as may WCCTAC Alternate Board Members. Any votes conducted during 
the teleconferencing session will be conducted by roll call. 
 
The public may observe and address the WCCTAC Board in the following ways: 
 
Remote Viewing/Listening 
Webinar:  
To observe the meeting by video conference, utilizing the Zoom platform, please click 
on this link to join the webinar at the noticed meeting time: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09 

 
Phone:  
Dial one of the following numbers, enter the participant PIN followed by # to confirm: 
+1 669 900 6833 
Meeting ID: 732 105 8840 
Password: 066620 
 

 

 
El Cerrito 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contra Costa 
County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 

A-1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7321058840?pwd=c1dMVjJydlBoYk0yYWVVZVlmWHZ4Zz09


Public Comment via Teleconference 
Members of the public may address the Board during the initial public comment portion 
of the meeting or during the comment period for agenda items. 
 
Participants may use the chat function on Zoom or physically raise their hands to 
indicate if they wish to speak on a particular item.  
 
Written Comment (accepted until the start of the meeting, unless otherwise noted on 
the meeting agenda). Public comments received by 5:00 p.m. on the evening before the 
Board meeting date will be provided to the WCCTAC Board and heard before Board 
action.  Comments may be submitted by email to vjenkins@wcctac.org.  
 
Comments may also be submitted via e-mail to vjenkins@wcctac.org at any time prior 
to closure of the public comment portion of the item(s) under consideration. All written 
comments will be included in the record. 
 
Reading of Public Comments: WCCTAC staff will read aloud email comments received 
during the meeting that include the subject line “FOR THE RECORD” as well as the item 
number for comment, provided that the reading shall not exceed three (3) minutes, or 
such other time as the Board may provide.  

 

 
1. Call to Order and Board Member Roll Call. (Chris Kelley – Chair) 

 
2. Public Comment. The public is welcome to address the Board on any item that is 

not listed on the agenda.  Please fill out a speaker card and hand it to staff. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
3. Minutes of June 26, 2020 Board Meeting. (Attachment; Recommended Action: 

Approve).  
 

4. Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities. (Attachment; Information Only). 
 

5. Financial Reports. The reports show the Agency’s revenues and expenses for 
June 2020. (Attachment; Information Only). 
 

6. Payment of Invoices over $10,000.  None (No attachment; information only). 
 

7. Fiscal Year 2020-21 Measure J 20b Funds.  WCCTAC allocates Measure J 20b, 
Additional Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities, funds to five 
West County paratransit operators each year to supplement Program 15 funds 
provided by CCTA.  In Fiscal Year 2020-2021 the estimated total funding is 
$241,625.  An attached staff report provides additional details.  (Attachment, 
Recommend Action: Approve FY 21 Measure J 20b allocations).   

A-2



       REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 

8. West County Bus Operator Updates.  The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted the 
finances of both of West County’s bus operators, AC Transit and WestCAT. The 
financial impacts and the changed ridership demand have implications for 
service provision. Staff from each of these operators will provide an update on 
agency finances, ridership trends, and outlooks for the future.  (Ryan Lau – AC 
Transit Staff, Charlie Anderson – WestCAT staff; No Attachments; Recommended 
Action: Information only).   
 

9. Measure J Program 21b - Low-income Student Bus Pass Program.  The Student 
Bus Pass program provides free passes to eligible low-income students during 
the school year.  This fall, it is likely that most local schools will not meet 
physically for instruction. Given the absence of physical school, and the fact that 
transit is currently free, there may be little near-term demand for bus passes. 
However, staff believes that some students may still need passes at some point 
during the upcoming school year.  The WCCTAC Board has the option to modify 
guidelines to allow eligible middle school students to obtain passes as well, given 
available funding capacity.  (Joanna Pallock– WCCTAC staff; Attachment; 
Recommended Action: Approve staff recommendation). 
 

10. I-80 Design Alternative Assessment:  Scope of Work.  Since the completion of 
the West County High Capacity Study, WCCTAC has requested the study of near 
and mid-term improvements to the I-80 corridor, focusing on improving 
conditions for transit and HOVs.  MTC and ACTC agreed to fund a study, via a 
Design Alternatives Assessment (DAA), and designated the CCTA as a co-partner.  
WCCTAC staff made comments on the draft scope of work before MTC issued a 
Request for Qualifications.  (Leah Greenblat – WCCTAC Staff; Attachment; 
Recommended Action: Information only).   

 
             STANDING ITEMS 

 
11.    Board and Staff Comments. 

a. Board Member Comments, Conference/Meeting Reports (AB 1234 
Requirement), and Announcements 

b. Report from CCTA Representatives (Directors Kelley & Butt) 
c. Executive Director’s Report 

 
12. General Information Items. 

a. Letter to CCTA Executive Director with June 26, 2020 Summary of Board 
Actions 

b. Acronym List 
 
 
 

A-3



13.  Adjourn.  The next regular meeting is: September 25, 2020 @ 8:00 a.m.  
   Meeting will be held remotely (see next agenda for details)  

 
 

• In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need special 
assistance to participate in the WCCTAC Board meeting, or if you need a copy of the 
agenda and/or agenda packet materials in an alternative format, please contact 
Valerie Jenkins at 510.210.5930 prior to the meeting. 

• If you have special transportation requirements and would like to attend the meeting, 
please call the phone number above at least 48 hours in advance to make 
arrangements. 

• Handouts provided at the meeting are available upon request and may also be viewed 
at WCCTAC’s offices. 

• Please refrain from wearing scented products to the meeting, as there may be 
attendees susceptible to environmental illnesses. Please also put cellular phones on 
silent mode during the meeting. 

• A meeting sign-in sheet will be circulated at the meeting.  Sign-in is optional. 

 

A-4



West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
Board of Directors Meeting 

Meeting Minutes: June 26, 2020 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Kelley, Chair (Hercules); Roy Swearingen, Vice-Chair (Pinole); 
Chris Peeples (AC Transit); Maureen Powers (WestCAT); Rita Xavier (San Pablo); Paul Fadelli 
(El Cerrito); Tom Butt (Richmond); Ben Choi (Richmond); Demnlus Johnson III (Richmond) 
arrived at 8:10am 
 
STAFF PRESENT: John Nemeth, Joanna Pallock, Coire Reilly, Leah Greenblat,                              
Kris Kokotaylo (counsel with Meyers-Nave) 
 
ACTIONS LISTED BY: Valerie Jenkins 
 
Meeting Called to Order: 8:00am 
 
Public Comment: n/a 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion by Director Peeples; seconded by Vice-Chair Swearingen;  
 
Yes – C. Kelley, R. Swearingen, R. Xavier, M. Powers, T. Butt, C. Peeples, B. Choi, P. Fadelli 
No - None 
Abstentions – None 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item #3.  Approved minutes of May 22, 2020 Board Meeting 
Item #4.  Received Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities 
Item #5.  Received Financial Reports for May 2020  
Item #6.  Received information regarding Payment of Invoices over $10,000. (There were   
                 none)  
Item #7.  Approved FY 2021 Work Program, Budget, and Dues Resolution 
Item #8.  Approved allocation of Fiscal Year 2020-21 Measure J 19b Funds to WestCAT  
                 and AC Transit. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

ITEM/DISCUSSION ACTION 
 

Item #9:  
S.B. 743 and the Measure J Growth 
Management Program. 
 
 
 

Information Only   
Matt Kelly, of CCTA staff, provided an update on 
the work of a Task Force to integrate the 
requirements of SB 743 (the move from LOS to 
VMT for CEQA) with the Measure J, Growth 
Management Program.   

3-1



 
Meeting Adjourned: 9:39am 

Item #10: 
Ferry to Bridge to Greenway Complete 
Streets Plan - Update 

Information Only 
Bruce Brubaker, of Placeworks Inc., gave an 
overview of the Ferry to Bridge to Greenway 
Complete Streets Plan vision in Richmond and 
described the progress toward implementation.  

Item #11:  
Impacts of COVID-19 on Measure J Revenues 
and Capital Projects in West County 

Information Only 
Hisham Noeimi, of CCTA staff, provided a review 
of the revised, lower projections for Measure J 
revenue due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  He also 
reviewed how this revised forecast would impact 
capital projects that include Measure J funding.  
Mr. Noeimi noted that CCTA has suspended its 
appropriations of Measure J funds to capital 
projects. The CCTA will likely receive an updated 
Measure J forecast in September, along with a 
proposed framework for prioritizing project 
funding. 
 

3-2



 

 

TO: 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

DATE:   July 24, 2020 

FR: John Nemeth, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Update on WCCTAC Activities  

 
West County Student Bus Pass Program (Measure J Program 21b) 

The Measure J Low-Income Student Bus Pass 
Program offers eligible high school students 
in West County free bus passes during the 
school year.  While this program was fully 
funded by a two-year allocation that pre-
dated the pandemic, local school district 
plans may not involve an immediate return to 
physical classrooms. In addition, local transit 
is currently free.  The West Contra Costa 
Unified School District (WCCUSD) and 
WCCTAC staff believe that low-students may 
still need to access transit during this school 
year, including for school-related purposes. 
Demand for passes, however, may be much 
lower than in a typical year.  The WCCTAC 
Board could allow passes to be available to 
middle school students given available 
funding capacity.  This topic is on the Board’s 
July agenda. 

 

Pass2Class Program Delayed 
Pass2Class is a 511 Contra Costa program that 
provides one, free, 31-day pass for AC Transit or 
WestCAT at the beginning of the school year to any 
West County student grades 1-12 who don’t 
otherwise qualify for the Student Bus Pass Program. 
The program will be delayed this year since transit 
is currently free and both West Contra Costa 
Unified School District and John Swett School 
District have both indicated that they will more 
than likely be doing remote classes this fall. The 
funds that pay for Pass2Class will still be available 
for students later in the year, if conditions change 
and the program is needed.   

4-1



 

Richmond Receives Planning Grant for Richmond Greenway Gap Closure 
With support from a wide variety of community members – including WCCTAC, Albany Strollers 
& Rollers, Bike East Bay, Richmond BPAC, Dirt World, City of El Cerrito, Contra Costa County 
Supervisor Gioia, Groundwork Richmond, Rich City Rides, and The Watershed Project – the city 
of Richmond recently received a conditional award letter from the Caltrans Sustainable 
Transportation Planning Grant program to develop preferred alternatives, and a strategy for 
implementation, of the gap closure of a major section of the Richmond Greenway.  
 
The area targeted by the plan is a section of the greenway in Central Richmond that is cut off by 
23rd St and a rail corridor. The gap has long been identified by community members, cyclists, and 
pedestrians as one of the most significant barriers to using the greenway. The planning process 
will heavily involve community input, led by project partners Local Government Commission and 
Pogo Park.   
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4-2



 

San Pablo Avenue Multimodal Corridor Study Phase 2:  Scope of Work 
WCCTAC, CCTA, and the Alameda County Transportation Commission (ACTC) partnered to study 
pedestrian, bicycle and transit improvements along the San Pablo Avenue corridor from 
downtown Oakland through the cities of El Cerrito, Richmond and San Pablo.  While that 
planning effort was fruitful, WCCTAC and the CCTA recognized that additional analysis specific to 
West County was needed.   
 
During the last calendar year, the WCCTAC TAC and Board reviewed a draft scope of work for 
the next phase of the Study. The scope focuses on advancing design concepts, and transit and 
traffic analysis, from Phase 1 to better suit West County’s needs. Due to COVID-19, some 
elements of the scope must be revisited before being incorporated into ACTC’s Phase 2 work.   
 
The WCCTAC TAC provided comments on the proposed revisions which mainly focus on 
modifying approaches for utilizing traffic data.  WCCTAC and CCTA staff foresee no change to the 
previously Board and Authority approved budget for Phase 2 which is $150,000 from WCCTAC 
and $300,000 from CCTA.  WCCTAC staff anticipates that the consultant will begin work in 
October following ACTC Board action in September.  

 
 

WCCTAC Staff Meetings During COVID-19 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Even though WCCTAC staff have not been able to meet in a face-to-face setting since early 
March, staff meets at least once per week via Zoom.  The ability to see each other regularly and 
review work projects has allowed everyone to stay in touch.  The Potrero Avenue office is closed 
to the public but still available for staff when necessary to use the printer/copier or conduct 
office specific tasks.   

 
 
 
 

4-3



 

Riding Transit Safely  
The Center for Independent Living (CIL) has produced a resource packet for people who are 
using transit or paratransit but want to reduce the risk of exposure to COVID-19.  Many in the 
senior and disabled community are transit dependent.  This flyer is available to distribute or post 
in central locations.  If you would like to request it, please contact Joanna Pallock at 
jpallock@wcctac.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

4-4

mailto:jpallock@wcctac.org


G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 7

/1
5/

20
20

 3
:0

8:
33

 P
M

Pe
ri

od
 0

1 
- 

12
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

20

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
00

W
C

C
T

A
C

 O
pe

ra
ti

on
s

77
0-

77
00

-4
10

00
Sa

la
ry

50
7,

44
8.

00
0.

00
50

7,
44

8.
00

38
7,

59
3.

79
11

9,
85

4.
21

0.
00

11
9,

85
4.

21
23

.6
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
12

00
PE

R
S 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

75
,3

40
.4

1
-7

5,
34

0.
41

0.
00

-7
5,

34
0.

41
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

13
10

M
ed

ic
al

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
69

,8
06

.9
2

-6
9,

80
6.

92
0.

00
-6

9,
80

6.
92

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
13

11
R

et
ir

ee
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
90

7.
63

-1
,9

07
.6

3
0.

00
-1

,9
07

.6
3

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
14

00
D

en
ta

l
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

76
7.

84
-4

,7
67

.8
4

0.
00

-4
,7

67
.8

4
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

15
00

Fl
ex

ib
le

 S
pe

nd
in

g 
A

cc
ou

nt
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

89
5.

00
-3

,8
95

.0
0

0.
00

-3
,8

95
.0

0
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

18
00

L
T

D
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
35

2.
89

-3
,3

52
.8

9
0.

00
-3

,3
52

.8
9

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

00
M

ed
ic

ar
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
60

7.
90

-5
,6

07
.9

0
0.

00
-5

,6
07

.9
0

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

01
O

th
er

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
,9

39
.1

6
-1

4,
93

9.
16

0.
00

-1
4,

93
9.

16
0.

00
77

0-
77

00
-4

19
02

FI
C

A
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
16

1.
82

-1
61

.8
2

0.
00

-1
61

.8
2

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

04
L

if
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
97

6.
01

-9
76

.0
1

0.
00

-9
76

.0
1

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

11
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
10

0.
00

77
0-

77
00

-4
19

12
U

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

15
5.

00
-1

,1
55

.0
0

0.
00

-1
,1

55
.0

0
0.

00
Sa

la
ry

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
its

51
1,

49
8.

00
0.

00
51

1,
49

8.
00

56
9,

50
4.

37
-5

8,
00

6.
37

0.
00

-5
8,

00
6.

37
-1

1.
34

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
4,

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

00
0.

00
7,

22
0.

73
-3

,2
20

.7
3

0.
00

-3
,2

20
.7

3
-8

0.
52

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

01
Po

st
ag

e
1,

80
0.

00
0.

00
1,

80
0.

00
1,

58
8.

97
21

1.
03

0.
00

21
1.

03
11

.7
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
35

20
C

op
ie

sP
ri

nt
in

gS
hi

pp
in

gX
er

ox
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
3,

18
9.

10
86

0.
90

0.
00

86
0.

90
21

.2
6

77
0-

77
00

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

54
,3

25
.0

0
54

,3
25

.0
0

54
,3

08
.7

3
16

.2
7

0.
00

16
.2

7
0.

03
77

0-
77

00
-4

39
00

R
en

tB
ui

ld
in

g
23

,9
00

.0
0

0.
00

23
,9

00
.0

0
20

,7
48

.3
7

3,
15

1.
63

0.
00

3,
15

1.
63

13
.1

9
77

0-
77

00
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

s
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
3,

80
7.

69
6,

19
2.

31
0.

00
6,

19
2.

31
61

.9
2

77
0-

77
00

-4
43

20
T

ra
ve

lT
ra

in
in

g 
St

af
f

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

3,
56

5.
80

1,
43

4.
20

0.
00

1,
43

4.
20

28
.6

8
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
Su

pp
lie

s
48

,7
50

.0
0

54
,3

25
.0

0
10

3,
07

5.
00

94
,4

29
.3

9
8,

64
5.

61
0.

00
8,

64
5.

61
8.

39

E
xp

en
se

56
0,

24
8.

00
54

,3
25

.0
0

61
4,

57
3.

00
66

3,
93

3.
76

-4
9,

36
0.

76
0.

00
-4

9,
36

0.
76

-8
.0

3
77

00
W

C
C

T
A

C
 O

pe
ra

ti
on

s
56

0,
24

8.
00

54
,3

25
.0

0
61

4,
57

3.
00

66
3,

93
3.

76
-4

9,
36

0.
76

0.
00

-4
9,

36
0.

76
-8

.0
3

77
20

W
C

C
T

A
C

 T
D

M
77

2-
77

20
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
31

0,
45

0.
00

0.
00

31
0,

45
0.

00
20

7,
59

8.
40

10
2,

85
1.

60
0.

00
10

2,
85

1.
60

33
.1

3
77

2-
77

20
-4

12
00

PE
R

S 
R

et
ir

em
en

t
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
55

,3
23

.9
6

-5
5,

32
3.

96
0.

00
-5

5,
32

3.
96

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
13

10
M

ed
ic

al
 I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

43
,6

85
.2

4
-4

3,
68

5.
24

0.
00

-4
3,

68
5.

24
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

14
00

D
en

ta
l I

ns
ur

an
ce

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
12

4.
32

-3
,1

24
.3

2
0.

00
-3

,1
24

.3
2

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
18

00
L

T
D

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

53
0.

53
-1

,5
30

.5
3

0.
00

-1
,5

30
.5

3
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

19
00

M
ed

ic
ar

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
2,

98
4.

85
-2

,9
84

.8
5

0.
00

-2
,9

84
.8

5
0.

00

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

07
/1

5/
20

20
 -

 0
3:

08
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

5-1



A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
rD

es
cr

ip
ti

on
A

do
pt

ed
B

ud
ge

t
A

dj
us

tm
en

ts
A

dj
us

te
d

Y
T

D
 A

ct
ua

l
V

ar
ia

nc
e

E
nc

um
be

re
d

A
va

ila
bl

e
%

 A
va

il

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

01
O

th
er

 I
ns

ur
an

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
93

0.
57

-2
,9

30
.5

7
0.

00
-2

,9
30

.5
7

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

04
L

if
e 

In
su

ra
nc

e
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
39

6.
85

-3
96

.8
5

0.
00

-3
96

.8
5

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
19

11
L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
4,

05
0.

00
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00
3,

96
5.

92
84

.0
8

0.
00

84
.0

8
2.

08
Sa

la
ry

 a
nd

 B
en

ef
its

31
4,

50
0.

00
0.

00
31

4,
50

0.
00

32
1,

54
0.

64
-7

,0
40

.6
4

0.
00

-7
,0

40
.6

4
-2

.2
4

77
2-

77
20

-4
33

00
M

em
be

rs
hi

ps
Su

bs
cr

ip
tio

ns
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
76

2.
50

-7
62

.5
0

0.
00

-7
62

.5
0

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

00
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
1,

00
0.

00
13

,2
48

.6
2

-1
2,

24
8.

62
0.

00
-1

2,
24

8.
62

-1
,2

24
.8

6
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
01

T
D

M
 P

os
ta

ge
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
77

8.
53

-7
78

.5
3

0.
00

-7
78

.5
3

0.
00

77
2-

77
20

-4
35

02
T

D
M

 P
os

ta
ge

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

0.
00

1,
50

0.
00

10
0.

00
77

2-
77

20
-4

35
20

C
op

ie
sP

ri
nt

in
gS

hi
pp

in
gX

er
ox

22
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
22

,5
00

.0
0

8,
62

9.
08

13
,8

70
.9

2
0.

00
13

,8
70

.9
2

61
.6

5
77

2-
77

20
-4

36
00

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
40

,0
00

.0
0

28
,0

00
.0

0
68

,0
00

.0
0

96
,3

19
.1

0
-2

8,
31

9.
10

0.
00

-2
8,

31
9.

10
-4

1.
65

77
2-

77
20

-4
39

00
R

en
tB

ui
ld

in
g

23
,9

00
.0

0
0.

00
23

,9
00

.0
0

20
,7

43
.9

8
3,

15
6.

02
0.

00
3,

15
6.

02
13

.2
1

77
2-

77
20

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
s

12
5,

64
7.

00
0.

00
12

5,
64

7.
00

15
9,

33
7.

02
-3

3,
69

0.
02

0.
00

-3
3,

69
0.

02
-2

6.
81

77
2-

77
20

-4
43

20
T

ra
ve

lT
ra

in
in

g 
St

af
f

2,
20

0.
00

0.
00

2,
20

0.
00

2,
15

5.
96

44
.0

4
0.

00
44

.0
4

2.
00

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

21
6,

74
7.

00
28

,0
00

.0
0

24
4,

74
7.

00
30

1,
97

4.
79

-5
7,

22
7.

79
0.

00
-5

7,
22

7.
79

-2
3.

38

E
xp

en
se

53
1,

24
7.

00
28

,0
00

.0
0

55
9,

24
7.

00
62

3,
51

5.
43

-6
4,

26
8.

43
0.

00
-6

4,
26

8.
43

-1
1.

49
77

20
W

C
C

T
A

C
 T

D
M

53
1,

24
7.

00
28

,0
00

.0
0

55
9,

24
7.

00
62

3,
51

5.
43

-6
4,

26
8.

43
0.

00
-6

4,
26

8.
43

-1
1.

49

77
30

ST
M

P
77

3-
77

30
-4

10
00

Sa
la

ry
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

Sa
la

ry
 a

nd
 B

en
ef

its
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
10

0.
00

77
3-

77
30

-4
40

00
Sp

ec
ia

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
t E

xp
en

se
70

0,
00

0.
00

2,
42

0,
00

0.
00

3,
12

0,
00

0.
00

78
0,

63
2.

50
2,

33
9,

36
7.

50
0.

00
2,

33
9,

36
7.

50
74

.9
8

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

70
0,

00
0.

00
2,

42
0,

00
0.

00
3,

12
0,

00
0.

00
78

0,
63

2.
50

2,
33

9,
36

7.
50

0.
00

2,
33

9,
36

7.
50

74
.9

8

E
xp

en
se

75
0,

00
0.

00
2,

42
0,

00
0.

00
3,

17
0,

00
0.

00
78

0,
63

2.
50

2,
38

9,
36

7.
50

0.
00

2,
38

9,
36

7.
50

75
.3

7
77

30
ST

M
P

75
0,

00
0.

00
2,

42
0,

00
0.

00
3,

17
0,

00
0.

00
78

0,
63

2.
50

2,
38

9,
36

7.
50

0.
00

2,
38

9,
36

7.
50

75
.3

7

77
40

W
C

C
T

A
C

 S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s
77

4-
77

40
-4

35
00

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1,
27

8.
89

-1
,2

78
.8

9
0.

00
-1

,2
78

.8
9

0.
00

77
4-

77
40

-4
36

00
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

42
2,

51
2.

67
-4

22
,5

12
.6

7
0.

00
-4

22
,5

12
.6

7
0.

00
77

4-
77

40
-4

40
00

Sp
ec

ia
l D

ep
ar

tm
en

t E
xp

en
se

53
5,

17
3.

00
13

2,
80

3.
00

66
7,

97
6.

00
61

,6
57

.9
3

60
6,

31
8.

07
0.

00
60

6,
31

8.
07

90
.7

7
77

4-
77

40
-4

43
20

T
ra

ve
lT

ra
in

in
g 

St
af

f
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
43

4.
26

-4
34

.2
6

0.
00

-4
34

.2
6

0.
00

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

Su
pp

lie
s

53
5,

17
3.

00
13

2,
80

3.
00

66
7,

97
6.

00
48

5,
88

3.
75

18
2,

09
2.

25
0.

00
18

2,
09

2.
25

27
.2

6

E
xp

en
se

53
5,

17
3.

00
13

2,
80

3.
00

66
7,

97
6.

00
48

5,
88

3.
75

18
2,

09
2.

25
0.

00
18

2,
09

2.
25

27
.2

6
77

40
W

C
C

T
A

C
 S

pe
ci

al
 P

ro
je

ct
s

53
5,

17
3.

00
13

2,
80

3.
00

66
7,

97
6.

00
48

5,
88

3.
75

18
2,

09
2.

25
0.

00
18

2,
09

2.
25

27
.2

6

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
2,

37
6,

66
8.

00
0.

00
5,

01
1,

79
6.

00
2,

55
3,

96
5.

44
2,

45
7,

83
0.

56
0.

00
2,

45
7,

83
0.

56
0.

49
04

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

07
/1

5/
20

20
 -

 0
3:

08
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 2

5-2



G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r

M
on

th
ly

 B
ud

ge
t R

ep
or

t

U
se

r:
 k

el
ly

s
Pr

in
te

d:
 7

/1
5/

20
20

 3
:0

9:
03

 P
M

Pe
ri

od
 0

1 
- 

12
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 
20

20

A
cc

ou
nt

 N
um

be
r

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

A
do

pt
ed

B
ud

ge
t

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

A
dj

us
te

d
Y

T
D

 A
ct

ua
l

V
ar

ia
nc

e
E

nc
um

be
re

d
A

va
ila

bl
e

%
 A

va
il

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
10

C
C

 C
ou

nt
y 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
0.

00
25

0,
00

0.
00

-2
50

,0
00

.0
0

-6
6,

55
8.

82
-1

83
,4

41
.1

8
0.

00
-1

83
,4

41
.1

8
73

.3
8

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

15
E

l C
er

ri
to

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

-1
,4

85
,8

27
.0

0
0.

00
-1

,4
85

,8
27

.0
0

-2
08

,3
02

.2
0

-1
,2

77
,5

24
.8

0
0.

00
-1

,2
77

,5
24

.8
0

85
.9

8
77

3-
00

00
-3

43
20

H
er

cu
le

s 
ST

M
P 

Fe
es

-3
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

-3
50

,0
00

.0
0

-7
72

,3
28

.0
4

42
2,

32
8.

04
0.

00
42

2,
32

8.
04

-1
20

.6
7

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

25
Pi

no
le

 S
T

M
P 

Fe
es

-6
0,

00
0.

00
0.

00
-6

0,
00

0.
00

-3
2,

81
0.

30
-2

7,
18

9.
70

0.
00

-2
7,

18
9.

70
45

.3
2

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

30
R

ic
hm

on
d 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
-1

,2
65

,0
52

.0
0

0.
00

-1
,2

65
,0

52
.0

0
-1

86
,8

02
.2

9
-1

,0
78

,2
49

.7
1

0.
00

-1
,0

78
,2

49
.7

1
85

.2
3

77
3-

00
00

-3
43

35
Sa

n 
Pa

bl
o 

ST
M

P 
Fe

es
-7

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

-7
5,

00
0.

00
-5

2,
24

8.
00

-2
2,

75
2.

00
0.

00
-2

2,
75

2.
00

30
.3

4
L

ic
en

se
s 

an
d 

P
er

m
its

-3
,2

35
,8

79
.0

0
25

0,
00

0.
00

-3
,4

85
,8

79
.0

0
-1

,3
19

,0
49

.6
5

-2
,1

66
,8

29
.3

5
0.

00
-2

,1
66

,8
29

.3
5

62
.1

6

77
2-

00
00

-3
34

03
G

ra
nt

s
0.

00
55

9,
24

7.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

10
0.

00
G

ra
nt

s
0.

00
55

9,
24

7.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

0.
00

-5
59

,2
47

.0
0

10
0.

00

77
0-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-3

,2
65

.2
9

3,
26

5.
29

0.
00

3,
26

5.
29

0.
00

77
3-

00
00

-3
61

02
In

te
re

st
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-6

0,
01

6.
94

60
,0

16
.9

4
0.

00
60

,0
16

.9
4

0.
00

U
se

 o
f 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
an

d
M

on
ey

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-6
3,

28
2.

23
63

,2
82

.2
3

0.
00

63
,2

82
.2

3
0.

00

77
0-

00
00

-3
40

10
ST

M
P 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

-5
0,

00
0.

00
50

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

50
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
77

0-
00

00
-3

41
11

M
em

be
r 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
0.

00
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
-5

23
,6

70
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
77

0-
00

00
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
-1

5,
00

0.
00

76
,1

06
.0

0
-9

1,
10

6.
00

-1
19

,3
97

.5
4

28
,2

91
.5

4
0.

00
28

,2
91

.5
4

-3
1.

05
77

2-
00

00
-3

99
06

O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
-6

71
,6

35
.4

7
67

1,
63

5.
47

0.
00

67
1,

63
5.

47
0.

00
77

3-
00

00
-3

40
10

ST
M

P 
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
47

,3
07

.1
2

-4
7,

30
7.

12
0.

00
-4

7,
30

7.
12

0.
00

77
4-

00
00

-3
99

06
O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

-1
5,

00
0.

00
59

5,
63

3.
00

-6
10

,6
33

.0
0

-4
80

,0
01

.8
9

-1
30

,6
31

.1
1

0.
00

-1
30

,6
31

.1
1

21
.3

9
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

R
ev

en
ue

-5
53

,6
70

.0
0

67
1,

73
9.

00
-1

,2
25

,4
09

.0
0

-1
,7

97
,3

97
.7

8
57

1,
98

8.
78

0.
00

57
1,

98
8.

78
-4

6.
68

R
ev

en
ue

-3
,7

89
,5

49
.0

0
1,

48
0,

98
6.

00
-5

,2
70

,5
35

.0
0

-3
,1

79
,7

29
.6

6
-2

,0
90

,8
05

.3
4

0.
00

-2
,0

90
,8

05
.3

4
39

.6
7

00
00

N
on

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l
-3

,7
89

,5
49

.0
0

1,
48

0,
98

6.
00

-5
,2

70
,5

35
.0

0
-3

,1
79

,7
29

.6
6

-2
,0

90
,8

05
.3

4
0.

00
-2

,0
90

,8
05

.3
4

39
.6

7

E
xp

en
se

 T
ot

al
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0

G
L

 -
 M

on
th

ly
 B

ud
ge

t R
ep

or
t (

07
/1

5/
20

20
 -

 0
3:

09
 P

M
)

Pa
ge

 1

5-3





 

 

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

DATE: 

 

 

July 24, 2020 

FR: Joanna Pallock, Program Manager 

RE: Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Measure J 20b Funds  

REQUESTED ACTION 
Approve a six-month allocation of Measure J Program 20b funds in the amount of $241,625 
to five West County paratransit operators for services to supplement those funds provided 
under the Measure J Countywide Program 15.  
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Measure J Program 20b, Additional Transportation for Seniors and People with Disabilities, 
provides funding to the five West County paratransit operators (East Bay Paratransit 
Consortium, El Cerrito, San Pablo, Richmond, and WestCAT) for services to supplement 
those provided under the Countywide Measure J Program 15. The programming and 
allocation of Program 15 funds is handled by CCTA, while WCCTAC approves Program 20b 
funds for West County operators.  
 
In past years, CCTA and WCCTAC staff have requested claim forms from each operator, 
which require explanations of how programs are performing and how operators plan to use 
program funds in the upcoming year.  This year, due to uncertainties created by COVID-19, 
and due to the fact that these operators provide essential services to populations 
disproportionately hard hit by COVID-19 restrictions, the Authority is waiving claim form 
requirements for Program 15. WCCTAC has likewise waived the requirement for Program 
20b.  
 
As the Authority has done with Program 15, WCCTAC is recommending an allocation of 
funds for a six-month period.  The details of the allocation are found on the attached chart.  
Toward the end of this calendar year, both CCTA and WCCTAC will get a clearer 
understanding of program funds available based on updated Measure J sales tax revenue 
estimates.  Both agencies will also get a better sense of how paratransit operators plan to 
use additional funds for the remainder of the fiscal year.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A: Program 20b FY21 Allocation Chart 
 

 

 

7-1



 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
: 

2
0

b
 -

 W
e

s
t 

C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

S
e

n
io

rs
 a

n
d

 P
e

o
p

le
 W

it
h

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 

F
Y
 2

0
2
1
 

 
 

S
a
le

s 
T
a
x
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 E

st
im

a
te

 
 

$
7
6
,5

0
0
,0

0
0
  

 
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 E

st
im

a
te

 
0
.6

5
%

  
$
4
9
7
,2

5
0
  

 
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

- 
W

C
C
T
A
C
 

  
 

 (
$
1
4
,0

0
0
) 

 
 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

A
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 (

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 W

C
C
T
A
C
) 

 
$
4
8
3
,2

5
0
  

 
 

6
 m

o
n
th

 A
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 (

*
.5

) 
$
2
4
1
,6

2
5
 

 
 

 
  

  
  

 
 

 

A
g
e
n
cy

 
C
o
o
p
 #

 
P
e
rc

e
n
t 

o
f 

T
o
ta

l 
1
0
0
%

 
A
m

o
u
n
t 

9
0
%

 A
m

o
u
n
t 

A
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 

A
d
ju

st
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 
F
Y
 2

0
1
8
-1

9
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

A
L
L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
  

C
it
y
 o

f 
R
ic

h
m

o
n
d
 

6
0
.0

0
.0

7
 

  
$
1
0
5
,7

3
0
  

$
9
5
,1

5
7
  

$
1
7
,8

6
4
  

$
1
2
3
,5

9
3
  

C
it
y
 o

f 
E
l 
C
e
rr

it
o
 

6
0
.0

0
.0

6
 

  
$
1
8
,0

4
2
  

$
1
6
,2

3
8
  

$
3
,0

4
8
  

$
2
1
,0

9
0
  

C
it
y
 o

f 
S
a
n
 P

a
b
lo

 
6
0
.0

0
.0

8
 

  
$
3
2
,2

0
4
  

$
2
8
,9

8
4
  

$
5
,4

4
1
  

$
3
7
,6

4
5
  

W
e
st

C
A
T
 

6
0
.0

0
.0

4
 

  
$
3
6
,8

6
0
  

$
3
3
,1

7
4
  

$
6
,2

2
8
  

$
4
3
,0

8
8
  

E
B
P
C
 

  
 

  
  

 
  

B
A
R
T
 

6
0
.0

0
.0

1
 

  
$
1
5
,1

2
5
  

$
1
3
,6

1
2
  

$
2
,5

5
5
  

$
1
7
,6

8
0
  

A
C
 T

ra
n
si

t 
6
0
.0

0
.0

2
 

  
$
3
3
,6

6
5
  

$
3
0
,2

9
8
  

$
5
,6

8
8
  

$
3
9
,3

5
3
  

T
o
ta

l 
A
llo

ca
ti
o
n
 

0
.0

8
4
%

 
$
2
4
1
,6

2
5
  

$
2
1
7
,4

6
3
  

 $
4
0
,8

2
5
  

$
2
8
2
,4

5
0
  

 

7A-1



 

 

 

 

TO: 

 

 

WCCTAC Board 

 

 

DATE: 

 

 

July 24, 2020 

FR: Joanna Pallock, Program Manager 

RE: Measure J Program 21b - Low-income Student Bus Pass Program.    

REQUESTED ACTION 
Receive information about the Measure J 21b Low Income Student Bus Pass Program (SBPP) 
for the 2020-21 school year.  Amend program guidelines for the upcoming school year to 
allow eligible middle school students to participate in the program, given expected lower 
overall demand.  
 
Background 
Program 21b of Measure J provides funds to low-income (free and reduced qualified) high 
school students in West Contra Costa for transportation to school. Since 2009, when this 
program began, the West Contra Costa Unified School District (WCCUSD) has administered 
the distribution of monthly bus passes to eligible and interested students.  This process 
requires school administrative work and a small share of funds from Program 21b are used 
to reimburse the District for that work. WCCTAC also uses a small portion of the funds for its 
overall administration.  
 
While exact figures vary from year to year, the table below illustrates a typical allocation of 
funding associated with the SBPP annually.  Roughly 2,100 students in WCCUSD are served 
each month. 
 
Typical Program 21b Annual Expenditures 

Annual Allocation - average Cost per year Comment 

WCCUSD Administration $60,000 Part-time FTE WCCUSD staff 

WCCTAC Administration $14,000 Staff program oversight 

Bus Passes $500,000 AC Transit and WestCAT passes 

JSUSD – John Swett Unified $60,000 Portion of contracted bus service 

TOTAL Annual 21b Allocation $634,000 Varies slightly from year to year 

 
Proposed Program for School Year 2020-21 
For the upcoming school year, the WCCUSD will likely propose a phased return.  Instruction 
will be 100% virtual at the start of the year and could gradually allow for a physical teacher 
and student presence at schools if conditions allow. There will be no school “tripper” buses 
contracted with the bus agencies at the start of the school year.   
 
It is likely that fewer bus passes will be requested during the upcoming school year, 
although demand is difficult to estimate.  At the moment, transit is free which eliminates 
the need for passes.  However, it is possible that there may still be a need for low-income 
students to access schools or other potential gathering spots by transit, and there may be a 9-1



need for free passes at some point.  As such, staff recommends that the program continue 
as it would during a typical year.  The amount of funds spent on bus passes would 
correspond to demand, so that if requests are minimal, a balance would pool up in the 
Measure 21b account.  Staff also recommends that the WCCUSD and WCCTAC 
administrative allocations continue as in previous years.   
  
One option for the WCCTAC Board to consider is to modify the SBPP program guidelines for 
the upcoming school year to allow middle school (free and reduced qualified) students 
access to the program.  Staff recommends this change given available funding capacity.   
 
While lower Measure J revenues have been forecasted for the future, CCTA has already set 
aside funds for the 21b program and made a two-year allocation in February of this year.  As 
such, the amount of available funding for this program in the current fiscal year will not 
been affected by recent declines in Measure J revenues.  
 
 

 

9-2



  
 
 
 
 
 

TO: WCCTAC Board MEETING DATE: July 24, 2020 

FR: Leah Greenblat, Project Manager   

RE: I-80 Design Alternative Assessment:  Scope of Work 

 
REQUESTED ACTION 
Information only. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
At the completion of the West County High Capacity Transit Study, the WCCTAC Board 
supported a series of recommended next steps for each of the alternatives studied.  To 
advance the express bus service concept on the I-80 corridor, one of the actions was to work 
with MTC and Caltrans at the regional level to improve the utility of the existing HOV lanes.  
WCCTAC followed the High Capacity study with the Express Bus Implementation Plan which 
considered bus on shoulder operations and improvements at interchanges to facilitate bus 
movements, both of which would require the involvement of other agencies to be 
implemented. 
 
WCCTAC has been in discussion with CCTA and MTC about a study that could include a 
review of HOV lane functionality and express bus improvements.  WCCTAC and CCTA 
prepared a draft scope of work for such a study in 2019. 
 
In late June, WCCTAC staff received a draft scope of work for a Design Alternative 
Assessment (DAA) study funded by MTC and ACTC with CCTA serving as part of the project 
management team.   
 
From the scope of work, MTC described the study as: “delivering a suite of near-term and 
low-cost operational efficiency projects to improve transit and carpool operations by 
reducing delay and serving more people in fewer vehicles.” The study’s purpose is described 
as:  evaluating a range of improvement options to address congestion in the corridor, 
including HOV/managed lanes. The corridor limits are between the Carquinez Bridge in 
Crockett and the San Francisco-Oakland Bay in Oakland.”  
 
The scope of work calls for a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) that will meet regularly 
throughout the length of the study and is comprised of local agency staff from: jurisdictions 
along the I-80 corridor between Oakland and the Carquinez Bridge,  transit providers, 
Caltrans, and WCCTAC.  The scope of work does not call for the consultant team to conduct 

10-1



public outreach or gather input.  It also does not include presentations and updates to 
WCCTAC or local jurisdictions.  Nevertheless, WCCTAC staff will provide periodic updates to 
the WCCTAC Board on the study’s progress. 
 
WCCTAC staff was given only a few days to review and comment on a draft scope so there 
was insufficient time to share it with the TAC and Board before submitting comments.  
WCCTAC staff requested that we be included on the project management team.  Among 
other comments, WCCTAC staff also requested that the study evaluate the option of 
weekend HOV lanes, which the WCCTAC Board previously expressed interest in.  While MTC 
declined to allow WCCTAC to join the management team, CCTA’s Deputy Executive Director, 
Projects, Tim Haile, assured staff that he would be closely coordinating with WCCTAC.   
 
Regarding weekend HOV lanes, MTC noted budget limitations prevented including the 
analysis in the scope but they agreed to include it as an optional task in case the budget 
permits.   
 
MTC released a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) in early July.  Proposals are due July 23, 
2020.  The study is anticipated to start this September with completion by February 2022. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. I-80 DAA Scope of Work from MTC’s Request for Qualifications 

10-2



Attachment A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Alameda and Contra Costa I-80 Design Alternative Assessment 

 

Interstate 80 (I-80) in Alameda and Contra Counties is consistently among the top congested 

corridors in the Bay Area. It serves as a key Transbay/Bay Bridge commute corridor that 

accommodates a diversity of travel patterns, connecting housing in the East Bay and as far as 

Napa, Solano and Sacramento, to jobs in San Francisco, Alameda County, and Silicon Valley. 

This corridor is heavily used by carpools and express buses during the commute hours, based on 

2019 data, as much as 34 transbay buses per hour were observed. 

As part of the Bay Bridge Forward effort, MTC is working with its partners to deliver a suite of 

near-term and low-cost operational efficiency projects to improve transit and carpool operations 

by reducing delay and serving more people in fewer vehicles. The purpose of the DAA is to 

evaluate a range of improvement options to address congestion in the corridor, including 

HOV/managed lanes. The corridor limits are between the Carquinez Bridge in Crockett and the 

San Francisco-Oakland Bay in Oakland. The assessment will identify and evaluate a range of 

near-term and mid-term operational improvements and demand management strategies, with a 

focus on improving higher occupancy modes of travel, such as express buses and carpools. The 

primary outcome of the DAA will be a set of near- and mid-term project concepts that could 

advance into project development and project delivery and would be competitive for funding 

opportunities.  

 

Study Limits  

The study limits of the DAA will be on I-80 in Alameda and Contra Costa Counties between the 

Solano and Contra Costa County line at the Carquinez Bridge and San Francisco-Oakland Bay 

Bridge Toll Plaza in Alameda County. The traffic operations analysis may need to extend 

beyond these limits to capture the effects of traffic in other parts of the corridor on the project as 

well as to better capture the operational effects of specific strategies. See Exhibit 1. 

 

 

  

10A-1



Exhibit 1 –Alameda and Contra Costa I-80 Corridor and Vicinity 

 

 
  

10A-2



Analysis Scenarios and Study Time Periods 

The analysis will focus on the peak direction of travel, i.e. westbound AM peak period, and 

eastbound PM peak period. At a minimum, study time periods shall cover the congestion 

duration.  

 

Study Years:  

• Existing Conditions (2019 – 2021, TBD) * 

• Near-Term Conditions (approx. 2026) 

 

The project may consider looking at long-term effectiveness of strategies beyond 2026. 

 

* Note that with the impacts the Shelter-in-Place order due to COVID-19, CONSULTANT shall 

coordinate with MTC and its partner agencies in establishing a representative existing/baseline 

conditions.  

 

Task 1. Project Management and Meetings  

CONSULTANT shall work with MTC, Alameda CTC and CCTA to refine the scope of work, 

schedule and budget during the initial phase of the project.  

 

CONSULTANT shall meet and/or check-in through conference calls regularly with staff from 

MTC, Alameda CTC and Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), who will provide 

direction for the project. MTC will coordinate with Alameda CTC and CCTA to establish a 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) for this effort, which will consist of Caltrans, transit 

operators, city and county staff along this corridor. Meetings with the TAC will be held at 

regular intervals throughout the duration of the project, including a kick off meeting. In addition, 

CONSULTANT shall recommend a number of focus meetings in order to review deliverables 

and make decisions over the course of the task order, such as additional meetings with Caltrans 

and transit operators. For budgeting purpose, assume a total of twenty (20) meetings. 

Virtual/web-based meetings may be required in place of in-person meetings due to COVID-19 

and social distancing requirements.  

 

Task 1 Deliverables: 

1. Final Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget 

2. TAC Meeting agendas and minutes (up to 20) 

3. Weekly Project Management meetings/check-ins 

4. Monthly invoices and progress reports 

 

 

Task 2. Project Goals and Evaluation Plan 

CONSULTANT shall develop a Project Goals and Evaluation Plan that articulates a vision for 

the corridor, and the Purpose, Need, and Goals for the project concepts that will result from the 

DAA. The Project Goals and Evaluation Plan should address the diversity of travel patterns in 

the corridor. CONSULTANT will use a screening and evaluation process to analyze project 

concepts that align with the project goals. The Project Goals and Evaluation Plan will summarize 

the team’s approach and analysis tools for screening project concepts, developing evaluation 

criteria, estimating performance measures for project concepts, and identifying political and 

10A-3



legislative risks associated with project concepts. It will also describe the review process with the 

project management team and the TAC, as appropriate, for various deliverables of the DAA.  

 

Task 2 Deliverables: 

1. Project Goals 

2. Draft Project Goals and Evaluation Plan  

3. Final Project Goals and Evaluation Plan  

 

Task 3. Data Collection and Assessment 

CONSULTANT shall compile and assess available data from various sources that are relevant to 

the agreed-upon performance measures in the Project Goals and Evaluation Plan and determine 

the needs for additional data collection efforts. 

 

Available data sources provided by MTC, Caltrans or web downloads include: 

1. INRIX speed and travel time data 

2. Swiftly Transit GPS data 

3. PeMS volume and speed data 

4. Vehicle occupancy and classification data  

5. Caltrans Census mainline and ramp volumes 

6. Streetlight Origin-destination data 

7. Geometric and right-of-way (ROW) data 

8. Commuter parking locations, supply, and occupancy data 

9. Inventory of casual carpool locations 

10. Relevant AC Transit and WestCAT Transbay ridership data and studies 

11. Relevant BART ridership data and studies 

12. Relevant data from other partner agencies 

 

Additional new data collection may include freeway and ramp volume, and vehicle occupancy 

counts, where not currently available or to fill gaps in data, and floating car surveys. For the 

purposes of budgeting, CONSULTANT shall assume $100,000 in the budget for additional field 

data collection. 

 

Task 3 Deliverables: 

1. Draft Transportation Data Assessment Memo 

2. Final Transportation Data Assessment Memo 

3. New Traffic Data 

 

Note that with the impacts the Shelter-in-Place order due to COVID-19, CONSULTANT shall 

coordinate with MTC and its partner agencies in determining appropriate times to collect field 

data.  

 

Task 4. Draft and Final Existing Conditions Assessment 

Existing corridor characteristics, problems, deficiencies and constraints shall be identified before 

initiating the alternative development process of Task 5. Deficiencies shall include, but not be 

limited to, freeway operations, HOV lane performance, commuter parking facility access and 

10A-4



capacity, express bus operations, and ROW/physical constraints. CONSULTANT shall estimate 

the performance measures developed in Task 2 for existing conditions.  

 

Task 4 Deliverables: 

1. Draft Existing Conditions Assessment 

2. Final Existing Conditions Assessment 

 

Task 5. Alternative Development & Evaluation  

This DAA shall identify a range of near-term and mid-term project concepts for consideration. 

Near-term projects may include, but not limited to, HOV lane access restrictions via restriping, 

HOV/bus queue jump lanes and shoulder running lanes, and HOV operating parameters such as 

days and hours of operations, or other concepts that would improve express bus operations 

getting to and from the freeway. CONSULTANT shall also assess for opportunities to enhance 

the existing I-80 Smart Corridor and consider new innovative technologies, with an emphasis on 

improving HOV and transit operations and encourage a mode shift.  

 

Mid-term projects may include, but are not limited to, existing HOV lane conversion to express 

lane, or dual managed lanes (HOV/express lanes) in each direction, which may require 

conversion of an existing general purpose lane. The CONSULTANT shall provide support in the 

evaluation of HOV and managed lanes policies, such as hours and days of operations, the 

existing 2-seater exemption on this corridor, and vehicle occupancy (including an alternative to 

increase minimum occupancy vehicle requirements, such as an HOV5+ managed lane). The 

equity impacts of various policies shall be taken into consideration when possible. 

 

CONSULTANT shall also identify transportation demand management strategies, including, but 

not limited to, first and last mile strategies, alternative modes, improved park and rides to shared 

mobility hubs, new and improved express bus services, opportunities for commuter parking and 

other improvements for ridesharing/vanpooling.   

 

CONSULTANT shall use recently completed studies as a reference, including Transbay 

Tomorrow (AC Transit), the San Pablo Avenue Corridor Project (the Alameda County 

Transportation Commission), the West Contra Costa County Express Bus Implementation Plan 

(West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee, February 2020), the West County High 

Capacity Transit Study (WCCTAC 2017) and the Countywide Express Bus Study (CCTA 2017). 

 

CONSULTANT shall apply the screening and evaluation methodology from the Final Project 

Goals and Evaluation Plan to a range of project concepts and fully document the trade-offs and 

risks inherent to each concept. CONSULTANT shall develop high-level cost estimates for 

project concepts at this stage since cost may be a screening criteria.  

 

The alternative development process shall also consider prioritizing strategies, phasing of 

individual strategies and appropriate packages of strategies. Preliminary layout and typical cross 

sections shall be developed as part of this task. 

 

Task 5 Deliverables: 

1. Draft Alternative Development Memorandum 

10A-5



2. Final Alternative Development Memorandum 

3. “Short list” of project concepts that will be further analyzed in Task 6 

 

Task 6. Traffic Forecasts and Operations Analysis 

CONSULTANT shall propose appropriate traffic operations analysis tool(s) for the study. Upon 

approval of the selected analysis tool(s), CONSULTANT shall develop hourly traffic demand 

profiles and a calibrated operations analysis model reflective of existing traffic conditions.  

 

Traffic operations analysis for the various alternatives, including a no-build scenario, shall be 

conducted for the near-term (2026). CONSULTANT shall develop and apply a growth rate to 

develop near-term traffic forecasts for the corridor, based on MTC’s Travel Model One (adopted 

for Plan Bay Area 2040). Loaded networks of Travel Model One and other related model files 

will be provided by MTC.  

 

Traffic operations analyses will generally be required only for the peak travel direction and time 

period, which is westbound AM and eastbound PM. Depending on the alternative concept, high 

level analysis, such as volume-to-capacity analysis may be needed at key sections along the 

corridor may be required for the off-peak direction of travel, i.e. westbound PM peak period and 

eastbound AM peak period. In addition, in light of SB 743, VMT analysis may be appropriate in 

the alternative evaluation. 

 

CONSULTANT shall develop reasonable mode-shift assumptions to reflect enhancements such 

as express bus services and commuter parking facilities and the availability of an express lane or 

shoulder for use by buses. CONSULTANT shall also determine any additional mode shift 

required to off-set negative general purpose lane impacts related to general purpose lane 

conversion scenarios.  

 

Task 6 Deliverables: 

1. Draft Existing Traffic Operations and Travel Demand Model Calibration Memo 

2. Final Existing Traffic Operations and Travel Demand Model Calibration Memo 

3. Draft Operations Model Calibration Memo 

4. Final Operations Model Calibration Memo 

5. Draft Travel Demand Forecast and Traffic Operations Analysis Report 

6. Final Travel Demand Forecast and Traffic Operations Analysis Report 

7. Analysis model input and output files 

 

Task 7. Design Alternative Assessment and Documentation 

A draft DAA technical memorandum shall be prepared for full study partner review, with review 

of MTC, Alameda CTC, CCTA, and the TAC at a minimum. The draft memo shall document the 

results of tasks 4 through 7, including an executive summary, assumptions, alternative 

development and screening process, analysis methods, performance outcomes of the short-listed 

project concepts, and cost estimates. The DAA documentation shall also include statement 

description of project goals and needs, developed in Task 3. 

 

Based upon feedback from MTC, partner agencies, and the TAC, the final DAA memo shall 

identify the preferred project concept for this segment of I-80 and develop an initial 

10A-6



implementation plan. Preliminary layouts, typical cross sections and other graphical illustrations 

of the preferred project concept shall be included as appendices in the final memo. In addition, 

the appropriate phasing of the preferred project concept, and packaging of the individual 

elements where appropriate, shall be included in the final memo.  

 

Task 7 Deliverables: 

1. Draft DAA Report 

2. Final DAA Report 

3. Technical memo with responses to comments on the Draft DAA 

 

Task 8. As-Needed Optional Tasks 

At MTC’s discretion, CONSULTANT may be requested to perform additional tasks as described 

below. All required services will be authorized on a task order basis. CONSULTANT is not 

required to develop a budget estimate for this optional task.  

 

1. Provide technical assistance in the evaluation of the San Francisco-Oakland Bay 

Bridge (SFOBB) Toll Plaza HOV Hours of Operations analysis 

2. Provide technical assistance in SFOBB congestion pricing analysis, and assessment 

on pricing coordination between the I-80 express lanes  

3. Perform additional data collection and field observations.  

4. Evaluate express lane revenue potential. 

5. Conduct analysis of limited weekend HOV hours. 

6. Conduct analysis of strategies on the SFOBB, such as a managed lane, two-way 

tolling, and/or bus lane. 

7. As-needed support in developing a project delivery plan.  

8. Additional presentations to key stakeholders, Committees/Commission, etc., as 

needed. 

 

Preliminary Task Order Schedule 

 

Task Due Date * 

Task 1: Project Management and Meetings 
September 2020 –  

February 2022 

Task 2: Draft and Final Project Goals and Evaluation Plan November 2020 

Task 3: Data Collection and Assessment February 2021 

Task 4: Draft and Final Existing Conditions Assessment May 2021 

Task 5: Alternative Development & Evaluation October 2021 

Task 6: Traffic Forecast and Operations Analysis October 2021 

Task 7: DAA and Documentation February 2022 

Task 8: As-Needed Optional Tasks TBD 
* Assume notice to proceed by September 2020.  

10A-7





 

 
 

El Cerrito 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hercules 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Pinole 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richmond 
 
 
 
 
 
 

San Pablo 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contra Costa 

County 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AC Transit 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BART 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WestCAT 
 

 
 
June 29, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Randell Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100   
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 

 
RE:  June 2020 WCCTAC Board Meeting Summary  

 
Dear Randy: 

 
The WCCTAC Board, at its meeting on June 26, 2020 took the following actions that may 
be of interest to CCTA: 
 

1. Approved the WCCTAC Fiscal Year 2021 Work Program, Budget, and Dues for 
review by the member agencies. 
 

2. Approved FY 20-21 Measure J 19b allocations for WestCAT and AC Transit. 
 

Please let me know if you have any follow-up questions. 

 
Sincerely, 

      
 
 

John Nemeth 
Executive Director 

cc:  Tarienne Grover, CCTA; John Cunningham, TRANSPAC; Colin Piethe, TRANSPLAN; Lisa  
       Bobadilla, SWAT; Matt Todd, CCTA 

12a-1





  

 
 

 
 
 
 
ACRONYM LIST. Below are acronyms frequently utilized in WCCTAC communications.  
 
ABAG: Association of Bay Area Governments 
ACTC: Alameda County Transportation Commission  
ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act 
APC: Administration and Projects Committee (CCTA) 
ATP:  Active Transportation Program 
AV:  Autonomous Vehicle 
BAAQMD: Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
BATA: Bay Area Toll Authority 
BCDC: Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
Caltrans: California Department of Transportation 
CCTA: Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
CEQA: California Environmental Quality Act 
CIL: Center for Independent Living 
CMAs: Congestion Management Agencies 
CMAQ: Congestion Management and Air Quality 
CMIA: Corridor Mobility Improvement Account (Prop 1B bond fund) 
CMP: Congestion Management Program 
CSMP: Corridor System Management Plan 
CTC: California Transportation Commission 
CTP: Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive Transportation Plan 
CTPL: Comprehensive Transportation Project List 
DEIR: Draft Environmental Impact Report 
EBRPD: East Bay Regional Park District 
EIR: Environmental Impact Report 
EIS: Environmental Impact Statement 
EVP: Emergency Vehicle Preemption (traffic signals) 
FHWA: Federal Highway Administration 
FTA: Federal Transit Administration 
FY: Fiscal Year 
HOV: High Occupancy Vehicle Lane 
ICM: Integrated Corridor Mobility 
ITC or RITC: Hercules Intermodal Transit Center 
ITS: Intelligent Transportations System  
LOS: Level of Service (traffic) 
MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 
MPO: Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTC: Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
MTSO: Multi-Modal Transportation Service Objective 

12b-1



                       

           

NEPA: National Environmental Policy Act 
O&M: Operations and Maintenance 
OBAG: One Bay Area Grant 
PAC: Policy Advisory Committee 
PASS: Program for Arterial System Synchronization 
PBTF: Pedestrian, Bicycle and Trail Facilities  
PC: Planning Committee (CCTA) 
PCC: Paratransit Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
PDA: Priority Development Areas 
PSR: Project Study Report (Caltrans) 
RHNA: Regional Housing Needs Allocation (ABAG) 
RPTC: Richmond Parkway Transit Center 
RTIP: Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
RTP: Regional Transportation Plan 
RTPC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee 
SCS: Sustainable Communities Strategy 
SHPO: State Historic and Preservation Officer 
SOV: Single Occupant Vehicle 
STA: State Transit Assistance 
STIP: State Transportation Improvement Program 
STMP: Subregional Transportation Mitigation Plan 
SWAT: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Southwest County 
TAC: Technical Advisory Committee 
TCC: Technical Coordinating Committee (CCTA) 
TDA: Transit Development Act funds 
TDM: Transportation Demand Management 
TFCA: Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
TEP: Transportation Expenditure Plan 
TLC: Transportation for Livable Communities 
TOD: Transit Oriented Development 
TRANSPAC: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for Central County 
TRANSPLAN: Regional Transportation Planning Committee for East County 
TSP: Transit Signal Priority (traffic signals and buses) 
VMT: Vehicle Miles Traveled 
WCCTAC: West County Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
WETA: Water Emergency Transportation Agency 
 

12b-2


	minutes 06-26-20
	P12-20 WCCTAC EXP Budget Report Monthly
	P12-20 WCCTAC REV Budget Report Monthly
	2020-07-24 Board Staff Rpt I-80 DAA Scope - blue
	ws 06-26-20
	Acronym List Master-NEWjn
	2020-07-24 Board Staff Rpt I-80 DAA Scope.pdf
	REQUESTED ACTION
	BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION
	ATTACHMENTS:




